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Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council 
4107 W. Spruce St., Suite 200 
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Dear Dr. Simmons: 
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The National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) requests the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 
Council (Gulf Council) review the enclosed amended Exempted Fishing Permit (EFP) and original 
application at their August 2019 meeting. The original EFP application was submitted by the Florida 
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) to NMFS and presented to the South Atlantic 
Fishery Management Council at their June 2018 meeting. NMFS provided FWC with an EFP in 
November 2018. FWC is requesting to amend their EFP to add additional sampling areas (including 
portions of the Gulf of Mexico [Gulf]), additional fishing vessels, additional number of traps, remove 
the requirement for research traps to have current certificates, and remove the approval for fishermen 
to sell any species caught from the research specific trap. Only lionfish will be allowed to be sold. 
The updated proposal is summarized below and the application can be found at: 
https:/ /www.fisheries.noaa.gov/southeast/commercial-fishing/lionfish-traps-exempted-fishing­
permit-applications. 

The EFP provided to the applicants in November 2018 authorizes FWC to test modified wire spiny 
lobster traps to harvest lionfish aboard commercial spiny lobster fishing vessels in the South Atlantic. 
The research under the EFP examines the efficiency and efficacy of modified trap designs for 
capturing lionfish, with the goal of identifying the best modification to maximize lionfish catch and 
reduce bycatch. Sampling occurs in depths from 100-300 feet between Alligator Reef and Looe Key 
Reef in South Atlantic federal waters in areas where commercial lobster traps are allowed. FWC has 
contracted commercial trap fishermen with experience handling lionfish and fishing within the study 
area. At least one FWC scientist is on-board the vessels at all times. Traps are fished in a trawl 
configuration (maximum of 32 traps per trawl, with two surface buoys per trawl) and have modified 
funnel dimensions, varying funnel locations, escape gap locations and sizes, and bait types (live 
lionfish, plastic decoy lionfish, artificial lures, fish oil, and fish heads). Modified traps are compared 
to standard wire spiny lobster trap controls. Vessels deploy no more than 100 traps in the water at 
any given time. Soak times vary, but do not exceed 21 days per deployment. Some traps may be 
outfitted with lionfish optical recognition technology. Data collected per trip includes: gear 
configuration and fishing effort data (e.g., date and time of deployment and retrieval, latitude, 
longitude, and water depth of each deployed trawl, bait type used); soak time for each trawl; trap loss 
and movement from original set position; protected species interactions; bycatch species, amount, 
length, and disposition; and lionfish catch data for each trap type. Research traps must have a current 
endorsement, stamp, or certification and the commercial fishermen are allowed to harvest and sell 
any species caught in the trap that they have the required licenses and permits for. As practicable, 
video and still photos of trap deployment and animal behavior in and near traps is collected using 
cameras. 
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